CONSTITUTION



Atya Patya Federation of India

: OFFICE ADDRESS :

C/o Nagpur Sharirik Shikshan Mahavidyalaya Dr. Munje Marg, Dhantoli, NAGPUR-440 012 (M.S.)

ATYA PATYA FEDERATION OF INDIA

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. The Name of Association is **"Atya Patya Federation of India"** hereafter call Association/APFI.
- 2. **Office**:- The registered office of the Association shall be situated in Nagpur or as the Association may be decide.
- 3. **Objects:** The objects of the Association shall be as follows.
- a) To arrange, promote and popularise Atya Patya and such other games and sports concerned with Atya Patya.
- b) To organise and assist in organisation of Atya Patya and other connected games and sports competitions and tournaments in India.
- c) To hold, to arrange and to register International countries competitions, coaching camps and Exhibitions of Atya Patya at such places and time as may be determined.
- d) To promote a friendly relationship between members and Association and similar organisation and to act in collaboration with the Clubs, Institutions for advancement of cause of Atya Patya.
- e) To educate for ganise and train the person for the promotion of the Atya Patya Game.
- f) To grant Certificates and diplomas to the deserving persons.
- g) To publish literature and matters concerning Atya Patya thereto.
- h) To establish, organise and run International Association, Clubs and Institutions as It's own Branches.
- i) To affiliate various states Atya Patya Associations, Clubs and Institutions to promote Atya Patya.

ARTICLE -1

Name:- The name of the Association shall be **"Atya Patya Federation of India"** hereinafter called APFI.

ARTICLE -2

Jurisdiction:- The Jurisdiction of the Atya Patya Federation of India shall be the territorial limits of the India.

ARTICLE -3

Official Year :- The financial year of the Atya Patya Federation of India shall be from 1st April to 31st March.



ARTICLE-4

Office :- The Head quarter of the Atya Patya Federation of India shall be situated in Nagpur or at the place as decided by Association.

ARTICLE -5

Membership: - The Association shall consist of the following classes of members.

1. **Permanent Members**: -Associations in State and Union Territories subject to the restrictions that from each State/Union Territories only one association shall be admitted to the membership of the Federation with voting rights. Each such State and Union Territory will have two votes each. The geographical boundaries of State/Union Territory shall be same as recognized by the Constitution of India. The Membership of Association and Voting rights shall be given to State and Union Territory Association subject to fulfilment of following rules:

a) 50% District Associations shall be affiliated to State/UT Association.

b) All the State and Union Territory Association shall organize State Championship every year for each age group.

c) All the State and Union Territory Association shall participate in Zonal as well as National Championship.

d) All the State and Union Territory Association shall submit the Annual Championship/ Activity Report, Audit Report, Annual General Body Meeting report with the membership fees on time.

2. **Associate Members**: - Services Sports Control Board, Railway Sports Control Board and other sports control boards of All India nature, Academies established for the purpose of Atya Patya and other organizations/institutions may also be granted associate membership without voting rights.

ARTICLE -6

1. Eligibility, Admissions etc:

1. Members: - Permanent Members/ Associate Members who pays Affiliation fees every year to the Federation and participate in all national Tournaments. Paying affiliation fees will renew the affiliation of the State/UT unit and will be having voting rights in the election and eligible for Annual General Body Meeting.

2. Termination of Membership/Affiliation

i) The affiliation of the State/ Union Territory Associations shall be within sole discretion of the Executive Committee. Subject only to approval of the Atya Patya Federation. It shall not be bound to assign any reason for refusing or regretting the Membership. It can also be terminated by



the Executive Committee, if the activities of the Atya Patya Federation of India, State/Union Territory Associations are found undesirable or acting against the interest of Association or Federation.

- The Membership shall be terminated:
 - a. By death
- b. Registration in writing and after acceptance of the Name by the Executive Committee of this Atya Patya Federation of India in it's . meeting.
- c. Default in payment of Annual Subscription, if any.
- d. By expulsion after notice and after enquiry on the grounds that the conduct of a member is detrimental to the honour and/or interest of this Atya Patya Federation of India or on ground that the member has wilfully and persistently refused to comply with the rules. Regulations and Bye-laws or with the regulations passed by the Executive Committee.

ii)

ARTICLE 7. Management: - The Management of the Atya Patya

Federation of India on shall be vested in the Executive Committee elected by the the General Body of the Atya Patya Federation of India.

General Body will consist of :

- Permanent Member (with voting right) 1)
- Associate Member (without voting right) 2)

The Executive Committee shall consist of not more than 17 members elected in the meeting of the General Body.

1)	President	_	One
2)	Vice President		Three
3)	General Secretary	-	One
4)	Treasurer		One
5)	Joint Secretary	-	Four
6)	Members		Seven
			•

Fees and Subscription for Membership

1.	Permanent Members	 Rs. 500/-
2.	Associate Member	 Rs. 1000/-

Affiliation fee for Permanent Member and Associate Member Unit Rs.3000/- per year (Fees will be subject to change AGM with 50% of Approval).



ARTICLE-8. Powers and functions of the General Body

The Annual General Meeting shall be held once a year ordinarily. The regular General Body Meeting shall be held as per the convenience of the members.

The Honorary General Secretary with the consultation of the President shall issue 21 days notice to hold the General Body Meeting.

- 1. To adopt of Annual Report of the last year.
- 2. To adopt the Audited Statement of Accounts of the last year.
- 3. Bye-laws newly framed, amended or elected by the Executive Committee, if any
- 4. The Executive Committee once elected shall hold the office for Four years.
- 5. To discuss the Budget Estimate passed and put up by the Executive Committee and to sanction it.
- 6. Appointment of Auditor.
- 7. Any other items with the permission of Chairman of the Meeting admitted by him as items of importance.

ARTICLE 9 QUORUM:-

The quorum of the General Meeting shall consist of 1/2 of total Members including office Bearers. For want of quorum, the adjourned meeting shall be held at the same place after half an hour to discuss the same business.

- a) The Extra-Ordinary General Body Meeting may be conveyed by the General Secretary in consultation with the President.
- b) Requisition Meeting shall be called by the General Secretary within two months from the date of receipt of the written requisition signed by 1 /3 of General Body Members. In this meeting only the specific agenda will be discussed for which be issued seven days before the day of Meeting.
- c) The bye-laws made by the Executive Committee from time to time shall be placed in the Annual General Body Meeting for approval and it will continue to exist until amended by the General Body in any such Body Meeting.

ARTICLE 10. Powers, Duties, Rights, Privileges, etc. of Executive Committee and it's office Bearers.

1. President:- He will preside over all General and Executive Committee Meetings. In his absence any of the Vice-President will preside over the particular Meeting.

2. Vice-President:- In the absence of President, Vice-President will preside over the Meeting. If President and Vice-President are absent, any member amongst the present Members will be elected as President, and he will



3. General Secretary :- a) He shall issue notice of General Body and Executive Committee Meetings.

b) He shall execute all resolutions passed in these Meetings.

c) He shall maintain all records, Papers, properties, registers etc.

d) He shall carry on General correspondence.

e) He may delegate some of his duties and functions of his duties and functions . to any other Members of the Executive committee, if necessary.

4. Treasurer:-He shall maintain all accounts, prepare a Budget and present the same to the Executive Committee.

5. The Executive Committee shall :-

- a) Admit or reject Membership considering their applications according to the rules and regulation and Bye-laws of the Association.
- b) Collect dues and control funds, properties of Atya Patya Federation of India.
- c) Impose penalty, suspend, expel and take disciplinary against the members, competitors, persons, organizers of competition and exhibitions for any reason with previous notice in writing to them and after giving a proper hearing.
- d) Withdraw or minimise the aforesaid suspension penalties.
- e) Fill-up any vacancy created in Executive Committee by way of election as per the guidelines of Government.
- f) Draw-up and publish rules for Competitions/Exhibitions etc.
- g) Appoint sub-committees for any work of the Association.
- h) Secure by purchase, Gift, lease of otherwise movable or immovable property
- i) Recognise or register organise any Competitions.
- j) Hear appeal made by any Member
- k) Decide any other matter not included herein. The decision of the Executive Committee will be considered final except in case of such matter, which require approval of the General Body.
- 1) Regularly hold election of Executive Committee as per the guidelines of Government.

ARTICLE 11.Ammendments:- Any amendments, alteration, correction abridgment to be affected in the rules and regulations shall be made come into force by 2/3 majority decision of the Executive Committee as per provision of section 12 of the Society's Registration Act. 1860. Contribution shall be amended as per the procedure prescribed.



ARTICLE 12. Banking Account- The Banking Account of the Atya Patya Federation of India on shall be opened in any Bank and shall be operated jointly by Treasurer and President or General Secretary.

ARTICLE 13. Funds: The funds shall be raised by the Governing Body by way of subscriptions affiliation fees, donations, gifts, Grant-in-aid from the State . and Central Governments or any Institutions or Agency in cash or kind.

ARTICLE 14. General Powers of Atya Patya Federation of India

For the purpose of carrying out the objects mentioned in the memorandum, it shall be opened to Atya Patya Federation of India to.

- a) To assist subscribe co-operate amalgamate with any such Society or Association having objects similar to those of this Association.
- b) To accept Grant-in-aid from State or Central Government, Municipalities, other Corporate Bodies, academic or other Institutions.
- c) To collect donations and subscriptions for purpose of the Atya Patya Federation of India.
- d) To arrange Exhibition of Atya Patya Competitions, Coaching Camps for raising funds for the Atya Patya Federation of India.
- e) To train Officials and other persons for promotion of the Game.
- f) To pay all caste, charge, expenses of registration and for promotion, Management and conduct of business and object of Atya Patya Federation of India.
- g) To make rules, regulations, Bye-Laws from time to time and control the business and activities of the Atya Patya Federation of India.
- h) To do all such other acts and things as may be lawful and incidental and candusive to the attainment.

ARTICLE 15. : The Atya Patya Federation of India shall be dissolved by the majority decision of 3/5 of the Members of Atya Patya Federation of India as per provision of session 13 and 14 of the Societies Registration Act. 1860. On resolution all movable and immovable properties will be donated to any other Society or Organization having similar objects by a resolution of the General Body

ARTICLE 16 :- The interpretations of the By-laws, rules and regulations of the Atya Patya Federation of India given by the Executive Committee shall not be called in question in any court of law. The decision given by the Executive Committee in this regard shall be final subject to any further decision by the General Body of the Atya Patya Federation of India including it's reversal. Any dispute between the office Bearers or members of the Federation shall be referred for arbitration to the Executive Committee and its decision shall be final and binding.



ARTICLE 17 :- Loan Provision:- Society can borrow Loan from trustee or other person or bank with the permission of Joint Charity Commissioner, Nagpur

ARTICLE 18 :- Provision for sale or purchases:- Society can sale or purchase immovable property with the permission or Charity Commissioner, Nagpur.

ARTICLE 19 :-Election of Government Servant / <u>NOC from Competent</u> <u>Authority :-</u> As per extant guidelines, any Government servant can hold elective post in association for a period of 5 years or 2 terms whichever is less with prior NOC from the employer. Further the orders of the Government/MYAS, issued from time to time, will be applicable for holding of elective office in the Association.

ARTICLE 20 :- Elective Post in other NSFs: No Office Bearers of APFI shall concurrently hold the post of an office bearer in any other National Sport Federation, except in the National/State Olympic Committee.

ARTICLE 21 :- <u>Sports Person in Executive Committee :-</u> Executive committee must comprise of at least 25% prominent sportspersons of outstanding merit who have participated at the national and international level.

ARTICLE 22 :- <u>Voting Rights :-</u> That, as per the National Sports Development Code of India 2011, in the election of Executive Committee, each State/UT affiliated member would be represented by two votes.

ARTICLE 23 :- <u>Ballot Paper voting / Secret Ballot :-</u> That, as per the National Sports Development Code of India 2011 every election and voting thereon should be conducted by secret ballot paper and no proxy voting would be allowed.

ARTICLE 24 :-<u>**Grievance Cell**</u>:- That, as per the National Sports Development Code of India 2011 the formation of grievance for Athletes/players by appointing three men committee. In case of grievance of lady/girl Athletes/ players in that event the committee should consists of at least one female member.

ARTICLE 25 :-<u>Term for President:-</u> That the President of Federation can hold the office for a maximum period of twelve years with or without break

ARTICLE 26 :- .<u>Term for General Secretary and Treasurer :-</u> The Secretary (or by whatever other designation such as secretary general or General Secretary by which he is referred to and the Treasure of the Atya Patya Federation of India can serve a maximum of two successive terms of four years each after which a



minimum cooling off period of four years will apply to seek fresh election to either post.

ARTICLE 27 :- <u>Age Limit :-</u> The president, the Secretary and the Treasurer of Atya Patya Federation shall cease to hold that post on attaining the age of 70 years.

ARTICLE 28: - **Audit Accounts**: Regular audit of the accounts of APFI will be held as per the guidelines of Government.

ARTICLE 29 :- <u>To Appoint Committees:</u> That, The Managing Committee has the power to appoint sub committees as and when necessary for carrying out certain work and president will be the ex- officio Member of that sub-committee.

Following Commission/Committee will be constitute in Atya Patya Federation of India

- 1. <u>Athletes Commission:</u> That, Athlete Commission will resolve all, the issues of the athletes. Athletes Commission will also resolve all complaints from the Athletes.
- Arbitration Commission: Arbitration Commission will closely look into dispute in the State/ UT Association and try to settle the dispute by setting up arbitration committee.
- **3.** <u>Women Commission:-</u> There shall be a commission formed for resolving the issues of sexual abuse on women and men where all the issues regarding the sexual abuse or sexual harassment shall be resolved and taken decision by the commission.
- 4. <u>Selection Committee:</u> That, Selection Committee will select the elite players from the National Championship for the International Championship.
- **5.** <u>Anti Doping Committee:</u> That, Anti Doping Committee will closely monitor all the Anti Doping Measures guidelines issued by the World Anti Doping Agency(WADA) and National Anti-Doping Agency(NADA). APFI will strictly follow the Anti-Doping Code.
- **6.** <u>**Development Committee:-**</u> That, Development Committee will contribute in the development of the i.e. to popularize game all over the country, Develop elite athletes, Develop Playgrounds and all over development.
- 7. <u>Age Fraud Committee:</u> That, Age Fraud Committee will be strictly verifying the documents submitted to the association.



CERTIFICATE

It is Certified that this is a true and correct copy or rules and Regulations of Atya Patya Federation of India.

Place:- Nagpur

Date:-

Sr.No. Name of the Member

1. Dr. V.D. Patil

Signature

2. Dr.D.P.Kavishwar

